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KOLKATA PORT TRUST 
HALDIA DOCK COMPLEX 

 
 

 
 
Name of the Project:  “Setting up of Outer Terminal-I alongwith all required associated facilities on Design, Build, 

Finance, Operate, Transfer (“DBFOT”) basis” at Haldia Dock Complex for a concession period of 
thirty (30) years (No. Ad/038/OT-I/RFQ/2016).  

 
 

REPLIES TO QUERIES  
 

 
 
SL.NO. Queries of prospective applicants KoPT’s replies to the queries 
1 Please provide a copy of the report prepared  

by AECOM, the consultant appointed by the Ministry of Shipping 
for carrying out detailed Origin Destination studies. 
 

Relevant portion of the AECOM report is attached. 

2 Please provide commodity wise, terminal wise 
volumes handled at HDC for the last five years. 
 

Enclosed. 

3 Indicative project cost is mentioned as “Rs.412.97 
crores”. Please provide a break up of Indicative 
project cost. 
 

 Particulars 

Amount in Rs 

crores 

I. Civil Works 154.60 

II. Mechanical Works 196.97 
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III. Electrical Works 15.90 

  TOTAL 367.47 

a Detailed Engineering & Project 
Supervision @ 2% 7.35 

b. Contingencies @ 3% 11.02 

c 

Works Contract Tax @ 4% on 100% 
of Civil costs  
+ 4% on 15% of Mech. & Electrical 
costs 

7.46 

   TOTAL CAPITAL COST 393.30 

 Miscellaneous Cost @ 5% of project 
cost as per TAMP 

19.67 

   GRAND TOTAL 412.97  
4 Kindly advice whether the indicative project costs 

are based on current cost estimates? 
 

Yes  

5 Please provide applicable tariffs for the project.  
 
 

Proposal for fixaton of applicable tariff is presently 
under consideration of TAMP and will be notified by 
TAMP. The applicable tariff will also be provided at the 
subsequent bidding stage.  May also refer to Clause 
1.2.7 of RFQ. 
 

6 Please confirm the applicable tariff guideline for the 
project. 
 

Guidelines for Determination of Tariff for Projects at 
Major Ports, 2013. 

7 Can you please advise the names of the Technical 
and Legal Consultants engaged by KoPT for this 

This has no relevance with this RFQ. 
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project? 
 

8 Considering that necessary studies, surveys etc will 
need to be carried out, please advise how much 
time is proposed to be granted between the 
completion of the pre-qualification process and the 
submission of the financial Bids? 
 

About 2 months. 

9 Please provide a to scale drawing of the Project Site 
and surrounding areas. 
 

10 Please provide the exact location of the railway 
siding within the Project Site. 
 

A drawing showing the Project site and surrounding 
area including location of railway siding is enclosed. 
Further details will be provided at the subsequent 
bidding stage. Please also refer to clause-1.2.6 and 
1.2.7 of the RFQ.   

11 Is a railway siding available at project site now.  
Please confirm if laying of railway tracks comes 
under the scope of the developer. 
 
 

Railway siding is not available at project site now. 
 
Laying of railway tracks comes under the scope of the 
Concessionnaire. 

12 Please confirm whether the railway siding for the 
project will be dedicated in nature or will be a 
common user siding.  
 

The railway siding to be developed at project site will 
be of dedicated nature. 

13 Please provide a detailed railway map within the 
port limits.  
 

Noted. Further details as available will be provided at 
the subsequent bidding stage. Please also refer to 
clause-1.2.6 and 1.2.7 of the RFQ.   

14 Please provide the exact take off point for water 
connection. 

 
Requisite details will be provided at the subsequent 
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15 Please provide the exact take off point for electricity 

connection. 
 

bidding stage. Please refer to clause 1.2.7 of the RFQ.   

16 Please confirm that 24 x 7 power is available at all 
times within the port premises. 
 
 

Yes.  

17 Please share a copy of the Environment Clearance 
for the Project. 
 

18 Please share a copy of the clearance from West 
Bengal Pollution Control Board. 

Action has been initiated by KoPT for obtaining 
Environmental Clearance for the project from 
MOEFCC. Matter is under process. 

19 Please advise whether all clearances to begin 
construction activities have been taken before hand 
by the Authority. 
 

20 Please share all the clearances taken by the 
Authority for the proposed project. 
 

Refer reply under SL. No. 17 above. 
 
Further, the Concessionnaire would be responsible for 
obtaining Applicable Permits/Clearances as and when 
required for commencement of Construction works 
and also those required before commencement of 
operation and during the Concession period.  
 
Also, type of permits / clearances to be obtained by 
the concessionaire will be mentioned in the Draft 
Concession Agreement forwarded during bidding 
stage.   
  

21 Please advice the estimated time frame for the 
construction of all the facilities? 

24 months from the date of award of concession.  
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22 Please advise if the Authority will provide adequate 

space and access for construction of the project. 
 
 

Yes. 

23 What is the proposed design draft? 
 
 

24 What is the draft at Haldia, approach channel, 
inside the docks & and at the oil terminals? 
 

Noted. Information in this regard will be provided for 
in the draft Concession Agreement to be forwarded at 
the bidding stage. However, current draft available in 
the navigable channel leading to Haldia Dock Complex 
which will govern the designed draft of the proposed 
terminal is available in the website of Kolkata Port 
Trust. Please also refer to clause-1.2.6 of the RFQ.   
 

25 Please confirm that the berth has to be designed for 
handling vessels up to 60,000 DWT. 
 
 
 
 

The proposed berth will be capable of handling 
partially loaded vessels upto Panamax sizes.  

26 What will be the scope of capital and maintenance 
dredging for the private developer? 
 

27 Is dredging envisaged near the berth pocket?  If 
yes, who will undertake the dredging? 
 

 
The project does not envisage dredging. Further 
details in the matter will be mentioned during the 
bidding stage.  Please refer to Clause  1.2.6 and 1.2.7 
of RFQ. 

28 How much total area has been earmarked by the 
Authority for the project? 
 

Noted. Requisite details will be provided at the 
subsequent bidding stage. Please refer to Clause 1.2.7 
of RFQ. 
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30 Kindly confirm that in the case of an individual 

Applicant having the necessary O & M experience 
(itself or through its Associates) it is not necessary 
to produce any evidence in support of the same.  
 

31 In case the Applicant has the O & M experience will 
the documents provided under 2.2.2(A) suffice? 
 

Details as per Appendix-I, Annex- II & IV of and 
undertaking as at item 19 of Appendix-I of RFQ shall 
be submitted.  
 
Further, you shall make available to KoPT any 
additional information it may find necessary or require 
to supplement or authenticate the Qualification 
statement. 

32 Clause 2.13.2.(v) – Please advise if the Applicant is 
using the credentials of its Parent, then whether it 
has to submit copies of Memorandum of Association 
of the Parent. 
 

The MOA of the parent is to be furnished.  
 

33 Clause 2.13.2.(vi)- Please advise if the Applicant is 
using the credentials of its Parent, then whether it 
has to submit copies of duly audited balance sheet 
and profit and loss account for the last five years of 
the Parent. 
 

The audited balance sheet and profit and loss account 
for the last five years of the Parent are to be 
furnished.   
 

34 Clause 2.13.2(vii): Please confirm that both the 2 
soft copies of the Application that are to be 
submitted together on CD can be contained on 1 CD 
and if the file size exceeds the capacity of 1 CD 
then it can be continued on the 2nd CD? Please also 
confirm that the soft copies to be submitted in a CD 
are to be in a PDF format? 
 

Confirmed. 
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35 Clause 2.13.2.(viii)- Please advise if we need to 
submit the Guidelines for the Department 
Disinvestment as per format at Appendix V.  
Suggest this be removed. 
 

Provision under Clause 2.13.2 (viii) shall be complied 
with. 

36 Clause 2.13.2.(xii)- Please advise if we need to 
submit the Policy for preventing Private Sector 
Monopoly in Major Ports as per format at Appendix-
VII.  Suggest this be removed. 
 

Provision under Clause 2.13.2 (xii) shall be complied 
with. 

37 Please confirm that there is no need to attach the 
RFQ document duly initialed.  
 

Confirmed.  

38 Clause 3.2.3(b)-Please confirm that the Applicant 
can use its Associate’s experience for Eligible 
Experience. 
 

Please refer Clause 2.2.9. 

39 Clause 3.2.3(c)-Please confirms that each of the 
Eligible Project has to have a threshold of INR 
82.594 crores. 
 
 

Confirmed. 

40 If the individual Applicant is having the necessary O 
& M experience (itself or through its Associates) do 
we still need to state this. 

Yes. 

41 Please confirm that average buying/selling rates in 
New York for currencies other than the USD can be 
obtained either from the website of the Federal 

The provisions of the explanatory note given at page-
45 (Appendix-I, Annex-II) of the RFQ Document will 
apply.  
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Reserve or Bloomberg? 
 

42 Currency exchange rate- if the date 60 days prior 
to the application due date is a holiday then please 
confirm whether the next or previous working day 
should be considered? 
 

The provisions of the explanatory note given at page-
45 (Appendix-I, Annex-II) of the RFQ Document will 
apply.  

43 In the event the application due date is postponed 
please confirm that the date as assumed above for 
the currency exchange rate will remain unchanged. 
 

In the event the Application Due Date is revised, the 
date to be reckoned for the purpose of conversion will 
also be revised such that the same is 60 days prior to 
the revised Application Due date. 
 

44 The conversion rate of USD 1= INR 60 seems to be 
out of line with the prevailing USD/INR exchange 
rates of USD1=INR 65.  We request that KoPT 
consider revising the exchange rate to reflect the 
current exchange rate. 
 

The rate of conversion shall be as stipulated under 
Page 45, explanatory note for column ‘Experience’ 
($$) of the RFQ.  
 
  

45 It is requested that the Authority provided a single 
firm date for considering conversion rate, so that it 
does not alter with extension of the Application 
Date. 

The request is not acceded to. 

46 Please confirm that Statutory Auditor Certificates 
for Net Cash Accrual for the past five years is not 
required. 
 

Confirmed. 

47 Please clarify if definition of depreciation includes 
depreciation, amortization and impairment. 

The query is not clear. Hence no clarification can be 
given. 
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48 Please provide the date of the RFQ. 

 
 

June 2016. 

49 It is requested that a site visit may kindly be 
arranged along with the Pre Application conference 
to enable the Applicants to familiarize themselves 
with the Project Site. 

The intending applicant may visit the project site with 
prior notice.  

50 It is requested that the Application Due date be 
extended by adequate time (at least 4 weeks) from 
the date of issuance of reply to queries/ 
amendments by KoPT to enable the application to 
arrange the various data/information and 
certificates in the desired formats. 
 

The matter has been considered. Revised Application 
Due Date is extended upto 02.09.2016 at 1400 Hrs.  
 
Revised Date and time of opening is 02.09.2016 at 
1500 Hrs. 

51 Generally RFQ Document contains the Project 
Location and Layout Plan for the preliminary 
understanding of the Project.  However, the same is 
not provided in the issued RFQ.  Hence, please 
provide the Project Location and Layout Plan with 
clear demarcation for rail road connectivity. 
 

A drawing showing the Project site and surrounding 
area including location of railway siding is enclosed. 
 
Further requisite details will be provided at the 
subsequent bidding stage. Please also refer to Clause 
1.2.6 and 1.2.7 of RFQ. 

52 Project Capacity in terms of quay capacity is also 
not specified in the tender. Hence, we request you 
to provide the same. 
 

The estimated capacity is 5.46 million tonnes per 
annum. Further details in this regard will be provided 
at the bidding stage. 

53 Though the Project Capacity has not been 
mentioned, we suggest Authority to plan the 

This will be addressed during the bidding stage.  
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capacity addition through this project in a phased 
manner.  This will help the capacity addition to go 
in tandem with increase in the traffic. 
 

54 RFQ does not provide details of the land allocated 
for stackyard of the project as well as the stackyard 
capacity. Please provide area for the stackyard 
yard. 
 
It is suggested that the terminal capacity should be 
in line with the stackyard capacity.  The land area 
calculation for the required stackyard capacity 
should be calculated based on the dwell time 
prevailing at other operating terminals and stack 
height permitted by local pollution control board. 
 

The area earmarked for stackyard is msg. about 
1,20,000 sq. mtrs. Further details will be provided 
during the bidding stage.  

55 Project scope indicated in the RFQ states that 
setting up of Outer Terminal-1 comprising the cargo 
handling jetty, mechanized system for – 
 
(i)unloading of dry bulk cargo from vessels, 
 
(ii) conveying the same to the storage area,  
 
(iii)stacking and reclaiming at the storage area and  
 
(iv)evacuation of cargo from the storage area by 
rail/road etc. along with all other associated 

This will be addressed during the bidding stage.  
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facilities. 
 
We understand that Authority requires 
Concessionaire to deploy fully mechanized cargo 
handling systems. 
 
We estimate that the terminal capacity will be 
about 5.0 MMTPA. We are of the view that high 
project cost of Rs.412.97 Crores is not justified for 
a project with capacity of -5.0 MMTPA and low draft 
terminal ranging from 7-8 m. this will make the 
project unattractive for the developer/bidder. 
 
The project should be modified to reduce the cost 
so that project is feasible and sustainable in the 
long term. We propose that project should be semi-
mechanized with following configuration: 
 

I. Cargo handling activities at Jetty with 
Mobile Harbour Cranes. 

II. Transfer of cargo from Jetty to the storage 
yard through conveyor. 

III. Manual loading of cargo into rail for 
evacuation from storage yard. 

Further we request that the authority should 
only propose the performance parameter and 
the project capacity.  The concessionaire here 
will make sure that the defined project capacity 



 12 

with the prescribed performance standard is 
handled through this semi-mechanized model. 
 
 

56 RFQ does not provide the details of the rail and 
road connectivity of the terminal for cargo 
evacuation. 
 
Please provide the connectivity of the terminal in 
terms of rail and road. 
 
We understand that connectivity by road and rail up 
to the project boundary shall be provided by Project 
Authority. Kindly clarify. 
 

A drawing showing the Project site and surrounding 
area is enclosed.  
 
Further details will be provided at the subsequent 
bidding stage. 

57 We suggest that the cargo to be handled at the 
proposed terminal should include import as well 
export of all kinds of dry bulk cargo.  This shall help 
increase the viability of the project. 
 

Based on cargo profile, projections and planning 
parameters at HDC, the proposed project has been 
envisaged to handle import coal/coke. However, this 
issue will be kept in mind for addressing during the 
bidding stage.  
 

58 Project cost has been proposed at Rs 412.97 Crs. 
We request you to provide the break –up of the 
same into major heads under civil, mechanical, 
electrical, IT, etc. 
 

Please refer to SL. No 3 above. 

59  Technical Capacity ,  states that sum total of 
eligible projects should be Rs 825.94 Cr.   

As per the clause 3.2.3 (c), the capital cost of the 
each project to qualify as an eligible project under 
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However, clause 3.2.3(c) states that capital cost 
should be Rs 82.594 Cr.  Please clarify. 
 

categories 1, 2, 3 & 4 should be more than Rs.82.594 
crores. Accordingly, Clause 2.2.2 (A) (iii) & 3.2.3 (c) 
remain unchanged. 

60 Clause 1.2.8 mentioned that bidder who quotes 
highest premium will be declared winning bidder.   
Does the premium here refers to revenue share 
quoted on TAMP rate. 

Premium referred in the RFQ is the revenue share 
quoted by the bidders as percentage of gross revenue 
chargeable by the Concessionnaire.  

61 Drawings of Cross Section for berth structure of 3rd 
Oil Jetty. 

This has no relevance with this RFQ. 

62 Soil Test Report of Berth and Stack Yard. 

63 RL level of Berth backup area and stack yard. 

64 Bathymetric chart Datum of Hooghly River. 

 
 
Noted. Available data may be shared during bidding 
stage. Please refer to Clause 1.2.6 of RFQ. 

65 KoPT to provide DPR & Feasibility Report to provide 
details of Capex & Opex cost considered for the 
project. 
 
 

Please refer to SL. No. 3 above and clause 1.2.7 of 
RFQ. 
 

66 What are the other terminals/berths HDC proposed 
to construct till 2025 for handling Dry Bulk cargo 
outside the locks? 
 
Does any other bulk handling terminal project 
outside locks co-exist or is under construct ion?  

Relevant portion of the AECOM report is attached.  
 
Please also refer to clause-1.2.6 and 1.2.7 of the RFQ.  
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The terminal shall require a minimum 5-6 MMTPA 
for viability, have the port carried out traffic study 
of import bulk cargo and that adequate cargo 
volume will be available for OT-1? 
 
If Yes, what is the basis of traffic projections?  

 
 
 
 
 
 

67 What are the other statutory clearances the 
concessionaire has to obtain? 

This will be detailed in the Concession Agreement at 
the bidding stage.  

68 Please advise if the concessionaire has to obtain 
Environmental Clearance for the Project? 
 
If, port shall obtain EC then please advise the 
present status of such clearance? 

Refer reply under SL. No. 17 above. 
 

69 Clause No.2.2.2 (B): Please advise if it is either (i) 
or (ii) or both? 
 

It is Both. 

70 Can the O & M be given to a contractor who has 
experience in project deemed to be under port 
sector without holding at least 10% of the 
subscribed and paid up equity in the SPV? 
 

Yes. This may be done through Management contract.  

71 Can a member without any financial eligibility or 
technical eligibility become the lead member? 

Yes. Provided it fulfils the conditions of clause-2.2.6 
and other members whose technical and financial 
capacity will be considered for the purpose of 
eligibility shall also fulfill the clause 2.2.2.  
 

72 Does the concessionaire has to employ or contract No 
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labour from any port nominated or labour pool of 
the workers working in port or private labours can 
be employed/contracted? 
 

73 Will the port consider giving any discount on Port 
Dues and Pilotage & towage charges for vessel 
bound for OT-1 terminal? 
 
Will the vessels inbound for OT-1 and outbound 
vessel will get priority in berthing and un-berthing? 
Will there be any restriction in movement of vessel 
in/out of OT-1 during operation or movement of 
petroleum vessel at HOJ 3? 
 
Will there be any tidal restriction for movement of 
vessel in/out of OT-1? 

These issues are not relevant at this stage. All such 
issues will be addressed during the bidding stage.  
 
 

74 What will be the land area provided for 
storage/stacking of bulk cargo in the yard? 
Can the area be increased subject to requirement 
of the concessionaire? 
 

Please refer to SL. No. 54 above. 

75 Will the port provide right of way for erection of 
conveyor gallery from yard to any terminal user’s 
plant premises? 
 

This will be addressed during the bidding stage.  

76 Will the concessionaire has to provide any MGT to 
Port for OT-1 project? 

Yes. The extent of MGT will be mentioned by the port 
in the draft Concession Agreement during the bidding 
stage.  
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77 RFQ proposes Setting up of Outer Terminal-1 

comprising the cargo handling jetty, mechanized 
system for (i) unloading of dry bulk cargo from 
vessels, (ii) conveying the same to the storage 
area, (iii)stacking and reclaiming at the storage 
area and (iv) evacuation of cargo from the storage 
area by rail/road etc. along with all other 
associated facilities. 
 
However, we would like to draw your attention to 
the discussion during the pre-application 
conference regarding the mechanization of the 
terminal.  We would like to reiterate our suggestion 
in this regard as following: 
 
Proposed project can initially for first five years 
from COD can be configured as the semi-
mechanized project which may include conveyor 
systems from jetty to stackyard and manual 
loading from stackyard to the rakes/trucks. 
 
Further, from the sixth year from COD, the 
stackyard operations and rail loading operations 
can be fully mechanized with stacker re-claimers 
and mechanized wagon loading system. 
 
We request you to incorporate the same in the 

 
This will be addressed during the bidding stage. 
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mechanization plan for the project.  
78 As suggested by us during the pre-application 

conference that the Project should be allowed to 
handle the coastal/export cargo in future as and 
when the need arises.  As far as the tariffs for the 
same are concerned, the same can be approved at 
the relevant time in future.  Such flexibility will 
help to improve the project viability.  Hence, we 
request you to incorporate the appropriate 
provision in Bidding Documents for the project. 

 
Please refer to SL. No 57 above 
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Extract from AECOM report 
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Berthwise Cargo Traffic Handled at HDC- 2011-12 to 2015-16 
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